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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA
ATLANTA DIVISION

ELENI PACKARD, on behalf of herself
and others similarly-situated,

Plaintiffs,

v Civil Action File No.:

STEAKHOUSE EXPRESS, INC., PIG-
N-CHIK EXPRESS, INC., PNC
ENTERPRISES, INC., RICHARD W.
MARRACK, and JAMES H. GRADDY,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

The above-named plaintiff, Eleni Packard (“Ms. Packard”), states her
complaint against the above-named Defendants as follows.

1. This is a complaint for unpaid overtime under the Fair Labor Standards Act,
29 U.S.C. 8 201 et seq. (the “FLSA”).

2. Ms. Packard files this complaint as a collective action pursuant to 29 U.S.C.
8 216(b) on behalf of herself and other similarly-situated individuals. Ms.
Packard’s Consent to Join form is filed contemporaneously with this
complaint.

3. This Court has jurisdiction over this case, and venue is proper in this Court.
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Defendant Steakhouse Express, Inc. (“Steakhouse Express”) is a Georgia
corporation that operates one of three “Pig-N-Chik” barbeque restaurants in
the Atlanta, Georgia area.

Defendant Pig-N-Chik Express, Inc. (“Pig-N-Chik Express”) is a Georgia
corporation that operates one of three “Pig-N-Chik” barbeque restaurants in
the Atlanta, Georgia area.

Defendant PNC Enterprises, Inc. (“PNC Enterprises”) is a Georgia
corporation that operates one of three “Pig-N-Chik” barbeque restaurants in
the Atlanta, Georgia area.

Defendants Richard W. Marrack (“Marrack”) and James H. Graddy
(“Graddy”) own and operate Steakhouse Express, Pig-N-Chik Express, and
PNC Enterprises.

While Steakhouse Express, Pig-N-Chik Express, and PNC Enterprises own
different locations of Pig-N-Chik restaurants, they share employees,
supervisors, and managers.

The weekly schedule for all employees of Steakhouse Express, Pig-N-Chik
Express, and PNC Enterprises is maintained on a single document.
Steakhouse Express, Pig-N-Chik Express, and PNC Enterprises share

common owners and officers.
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Steakhouse Express, Pig-N-Chik Express, and PNC Enterprises present
publicly as a single enterprise. For example, all three Pig-N-Chik restaurants
use the same name, logo, menu, and advertising media. Additionally, all three

locations maintain a single website at www.pignchik.net. This website

identifies the location of the three Pig-N-Chik restaurants at

http://www.pignchik.net/locations.html.

Steakhouse Express, Pig-N-Chik Express, and PNC Enterprises operate as a
common enterprise for purposes of the FLSA.

As owners of Steakhouse Express, Pig-N-Chik Express, and PNC Enterprises,
Marrack and Graddy have complete control over the daily operations of the
three Pig-N-Chik barbeque restaurants owned by these entities, including the
hiring and firing of employees and determining the method of compensating
employees.

During each of the three years preceding the filing of this complaint, the gross
annual sales for Steakhouse Express, Pig-N-Chik Express, and PNC
Enterprises exceeded $500,000.

During each of the three years preceding the filing of this complaint,
Steakhouse Express, Pig-N-Chik Express, and PNC Enterprises employed one

or more individuals who engaged in interstate commerce.
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Within the three-year period preceding the filing of this complaint, Steakhouse
Express, Pig-N-Chik Express, PNC Enterprises, Marrack, and Graddy
(collectively referred to as “Defendants”) jointly employed Ms. Packard as a
“counter girl.”

Ms. Packard worked as a counter girl at each of Defendants’ three Pig-N-Chik
restaurants.

Although Steakhouse Express, Pig-N-Chik Express, and PNC Enterprises
operated as a common enterprise and jointly employed Ms. Packard, for each
pay period during Ms. Packard’s employment, Defendants issued Ms. Packard
a separate paycheck for each restaurant.

Defendants paid all their hourly employees in this manner, i.e., Defendants
issued all hourly employees separate pay checks for each Pig-N-Chik
restaurant.

Ms. Packard routinely worked more than 40 hours per week for Defendants.
However, due to Defendants’ practice of issuing separate pay checks for each
Pig-N-Chik location, Defendants failed to pay Ms. Packard proper overtime
compensation for her working hours over 40 per week.

COUNT 1 - As described above, Defendants violated the FLSA by failing to

pay Ms. Packard and other hourly employees 1.5 times their regularly hourly
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rate for working hours over 40 per week.

23.  Defendants’ violations of the FLSA described above were willful.

Based on the above facts, Ms. Packard requests a jury trial on all triable issues
and asks the Court for the following relief for herself and other similarly-situated
employees who choose to join this lawsuit: unpaid overtime wages, liquidated
damages as permitted by the FLSA, prejudgment interest, litigation costs, attorneys’
fees, and other relief deemed appropriate by the Court.

Respectfully submitted on September 29, 2017.

s/ Regan Keebaugh

Regan Keebaugh
Georgia Bar No. 535500

Radford & Keebaugh, LLC
315 W. Ponce de Leon Ave.
Suite 1080

Decatur, Georgia 30030

T: (678) 271-0300

F: (678) 271-0311
reqan@decaturlegal.com
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CONSENT TO BE A PLAINTIFF IN AN ACTION BROUGHT UNDER
THE FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (29 U.S.C. § 201, ET SEQ.)

I am a current or former employee of Pig-N-Chik barbeque restaurants, which
I understand are owned by Steakhouse Express, Inc., Pig-N-Chik Express, Inc., and
PNC Enterprises, Inc. I consent to become a plaintiff in a lawsuit against these
entities and their owners, Richard W. Marrack and James H. Graddy, to recover
unpaid overtime compensation and any other benefits available to me under the Fair

Labor Standards Act and other applicable laws.

ElengMaria Packard (?pz& 017)
C\C VY e\ gr\-
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Consent Form

T T Adobe Sign Document History 09/28/2017
ST Created: 09/28/2017

By: Regan Keebaugh (regan@decaturiegal.com)

Status: Signed

Transaction 1D: CBJCHBCAABAANmx6ERMdm6ujud3USvo29zI9XdM83Ivb

"Consent Form" History

™ Document uploaded by Regan Keebaugh (regan@decaturlegal.com) from Acrobat
09/28/2017 - 5:27:51 PM PDT- IP address: 73.106.32.215

&3 Document emailed to Eleni Maria Packard (mariaelenipackard@gmail.com) for signature
09/28/2017 - 5:27:52 PM PDT

3 Document viewed by Eleni Maria Packard (mariaelenipackard@gmail.com)
09/28/2017 - 6:14:22 PM PDT- IP address: 24.98.99.88

& Document e-signed by Eleni Maria Packard (mariaelenipackard@gmail.com)
Signature Date: 09/28/2017 - 6:16:38 PM PDT - Time Source: server- IP address: 24.98.99.88

@ Signed document emailed to Eleni Maria Packard (mariaelenipackard@gmail.com) and Regan Keebaugh

(regan@decaturlegal.com)
09/28/2017 - 6:16:38 PM PDT

‘ Adobe Sign
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local rules of court. This form is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket record. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ATTACHED)
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Eleni Packard Steakhouse Express, Inc.
Pig-N-Chik Express, Inc.
PNC Enterprises, Inc.
Richard W. Marrack
James H. Graddy
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violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 USC Section 201 et seq.

(IF COMPLEX, CHECK REASON BELOW)

I:l 1. Unusually large number of parties. I:l 6. Problems locating or preserving evidence
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